UNITED STATESINTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the M atter of:

)
)
)
CERTAIN DISPLAY CONTROLLERS )
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME )
)
)
)
)

Inv. No. 337-TA-491
Inv. No. 337-TA-481
(consolidated)

and

CERTAIN DISPLAY CONTROLLERSWITH
UPSCALING FUNCTIONALITY AND )
PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME )

TERMINATION OF CONSOLIDATED INVESTIGATIONS;
ISSUANCE OF LIMITED EXCLUSION ORDER

AGENCY: U.S. Internationa Trade Commisson.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY:: Noticeis hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has found a
violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, with respect to three respondents
and hasissued alimited excluson order in the above-captioned consolidated investigation. The
Commission has aso determined to grant complainant’s July 27, 2004, mation for leaveto filea
surreply, and to Strike exhibits A and B attached to complainant’s July 16, 2004, submission.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Michad Liberman, Esq., or Clara Kuehn, Esq.,
Office of the General Counsd, U.S. Internationa Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Washington,
D.C. 20436, tlephone (202) 205-3061. Copies of dl nonconfidential documents filed in connection
with thisinvestigation are or will be available for ingpection during officid business hours (8:45 am. to
5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. Internationd Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW.,
Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. Genera information concerning the Commission
may aso be obtained by accessing its Internet server (http://www.usitc.gov). The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's eectronic docket (EDIS) at
http://edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD termina on 202-205-1810.



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commissioningtituted Inv. No. 337-TA-481,
Certain Display Controllers with Upscaling Functionality and Products Containing Same
(“Display Controllers| ” or “481 investigation™) on October 18, 2002, based on a complaint filed by
Genesis Microchip (Delaware) Inc. (“Genesis’) of Alviso, CA naming Media Redity Technologies, Inc.
of Sunnyvde, CA (“MRT”); Trumpion Microeectronics, Inc. (“Trumpion”) of Taipe City, Tawan; and
SmartASIC, Inc. of San Jose, CA asrespondents. 67 Fed. Reg. 64411. On January 14, 2003, the
then presiding ALJissued an ID terminating respondent SmartASIC from the investigation on the basis
of a settlement agreement. That 1D was not reviewed by the Commission. Thefina 1D in Display
Controllers| (“the 481 Final ID”) issued on October 20, 2003. 68 Fed. Reg. 69719. The ALJ found
no violation of section 337 based on hisfindings that respondents accused products do not infringe
clams1-3,5, 6,9, 12, 13, 16, 17, 33-36, 38, or 39 of U.S. Patent No. 5,739,867 (“the ‘867
patent”), claims 1 and 9 of the ‘867 areinvaid, and that complainant Genesis has not satisfied the
domestic industry requirement of section 337.

On December 5, 2003, the Commission determined to review the 481 Find ID in part. Id. The
Commission determined to review portions of the ALJ s clam congruction, al of the ALJ s non-
infringement findings, the AL J sfinding that complainant Genesis does not practice any clams of the
‘867 patent, and the ALJ sfindings that neither the Spartan reference nor the ACUITY Application
Note anticipate the asserted claims of the ‘867 patent. On review of the 481 Find 1D, the Commission
determined to reverse portions of the ALJ s clam congtruction and to remand the investigation to the
ALJ. On January 20, 2004, the Commission ordered that the AL J conduct further proceedings and
make any findings necessary in order to determine whether, in light of the claim congtruction
determinations made by the Commisson: (a) the accused products in the 481 investigetion infringe the
asserted clams of the ‘867 patent; (b) complainant Genesis satisfies the technicd prong of the domestic
industry requirement; (c) the Spartan Zoom Engine congtitutes prior art to the * 867 patent and whether
it anticipates the asserted claims of the ‘867 patent; and (d) the Acuity Application Note congtitutes an
enabling prior art reference that anticipates the asserted claims of the ‘867 patent. 69 Fed. Reg. 3602
(Jan. 26, 2004). On review of the 481 Final 1D, the Commission remanded Display Controllers| to
the ALJ. 69 Fed. Reg. 3602 (Jan. 26, 2004). The remand order directed that the ALJissue hisfindings
by May 20, 2004, and set a schedule for the filing by the parties of comments on the ALJ s findings and
response comments. The remand order also extended the target date for completion of the 481
investigation to August 20, 2004.

The Commission ingtituted Inv. No. 337-TA-491, Certain Display Controllers and Products
Containing Same (“Display Controllers11” or “491 investigation”) on April 14, 2003, based on a
complaint filed on behaf of Genesis. 68 Fed. Reg. 17964 (Apr. 14, 2003). The complaint, as
supplemented, aleged violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 in the importation into the
United States, sde for importation, and sale within the United States after importation of certain display
controllers and products containing same by reason of infringement of claims 13 and 15 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,078,361 (“the ‘361 patent”); certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 5,953,074 (“the ' 074 patent”);
and certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 6,177,922 (“the * 922 patent”). The notice of investigation named
three respondents. Media Redlity Technologies, Inc. of Taipe, Tawan; MRT; and Trumpion. Id. Both
Trumpion and MRT were adso named respondentsin Display Controllersi.



On June 20, 2003, the ALJissued an ID (Order No. 5) amending the complaint and notice of
invedigationin Display Controllers 1 to add MStar Semiconductor, Inc. (“MStar”) as a respondent,
additiona claims of the ‘074 patent, and claims 1-3, 5, 6, 9, 12, 13, 16, 17, 33-36, 38, and 39 of the
‘867 patent, the same patent at issue in the 481 investigation. That ID was not reviewed by the
Commission. 68 Fed. Reg. 44967 (July 31, 2003).

On November 10, 2003, the ALJissued an ID (Order No. 38) granting complainant’s motion
to terminate the Display Controllers 11 investigation with repect to Trumpion, the ‘922 patent, and the
‘074 patent. That ID was not reviewed by the Commission.

On January 6, 2004, atutorid sesson was held in Display Controllers 1. An evidentiary
hearing was held on January 6-15, 20, and February 2-3, 2004. On April 14, 2004, the ALJissued his
find ID (“the 491 Find ID”) and recommended determination on remedy and bonding in Display
Controllersll. Inthe 491 Find 1D, the ALJ found aviolation of section 337 with respect to
respondent MStar, but no violation with respect to respondent MRT.

Complainant Genesis, respondents MRT and M Star, and the Commission investigative attorney
each petitioned for review of portions of the 491 Find ID, and filed responses to the petitions for
review. On May 13, 2004, respondent M Star filed a motion for leave to reply and with an attached
reply.

On May 20, 2004, the ALJissued an ID in Display Controllers| (“the 481 Remand ID”) on
remand. In the 481 Remand ID, the ALJ found aviolation of section 337 with respect to both
respondentsin Display Controllers |, MRT and Trumpion.

On May 21, 2004, the Commission issued an order consolidating the 481 and 491
investigations and set the target date for completion of the consolidated investigation to August 20,
2004.

On June 2, 2004, respondent Trumpion filed a petition for review of the 481 Remand ID. On
the same day, the I A filed comments on issues decided in the 481 Remand ID. On June 7, 2004,
respondent MRT filed a petition for review of the 481 Remand ID. The IA and complainant Genes's
filed timely responses to the petitions.

On duly 6, 2004, the Commission determined to review portions of the 481 Remand ID and
portions of the 491 Find ID. 69 Fed. Reg. 41846

Inits review notice, the Commission invited the parties to file written submissons on the issues
under review, invited interested persons to file written submissions on the issues of remedy, the public
interest and bonding, and provided a schedule for filing such submissions. The Commisson aso
requested briefing from the parties on Sx questions. Initid briefs were filed on July 16, 2004, and reply
briefs were filed on July 23, 2004. On July 27, 2004, Genesis filed amotion for leave to file asurreply
to MStar’ sreply brief with attached surreply. On July 29, 2004, MStar filed its opposition to Genesis's
motion.

Having reviewed the record in this consolidated investigation, including the parties’ written
submissions and responses thereto, the Commission determined asfollows: (1) there is aviolation of
section 337 by respondent M Star with respect to claims 2, 33, 34, 35, and 36 of the ‘867 patent, but
no violation with repect to claims 1 and 9 of the ‘867 patent; (2) thereisaviolation of section 337 by
respondent MRT with respect to clams 2, 3, 5, 6, 12, 13, 16, 17, 33-36, 38, and 39 of the ‘867



patent; and (3) thereisaviolation of section 337 by respondent Trumpion with respect to claims 2, 33-
35, and 36 of the ‘867 patent. The Commission previoudy found that there is no violation of section
337 by any respondent with respect to the * 361 patent because it determined not to review the ALJ s
infringement findings with respect to the limitations of cdlam dements 13(a) or 15(a) and not to review
the ALJ sfindings that complainant’s Detroit products and Jasper/Reno products do not practice the
limitations of claim elements 13(a) or 15(a) as required to satisfy the technica prong of the domestic
industry requirement.

Having determined that a violation of section 337 has occurred in the importation, sale for
importation, or sde in the United States of the accused display controllers, the Commission considered
the issues of the appropriate form of relief, whether the public interest precludesissuance of such relief,
and the bond during the 60-day Presidentia review period.

The Commission determined that alimited excluson order prohibiting the importation of the
accused display controllers, as well as circuit boards and LCD monitors (exclusive of televison
monitors) containing same, directed to respondents MRT, Trumpion, and MStar is the appropriate
form of relief. The Commission further determined that the statutory public interest factors do not
preclude the issuance of such relief, and that respondent’ s bond under the limited exclusion order shall
be in the amount of $1.00 per covered product.

The Commission aso determined to grant complainant’s July 27, 2004, mation for leave to file
asurreply, and to strike exhibits A and B attached to complainant’s July 16, 2004, submission.

The Commission’s opinion setting forth its reasoning shal issue shortly.

The authority for the Commission's determinations is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act
of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 8 1337), and in sections 210.45 - 210.51 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. 88 210.45 - 210.51).

By order of the Commisson.

Marilyn R. Abbott
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: August 20, 2004



